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According to an early newspaper article, Epworth Hall, 
at the time the construction contract was awarded, was to 
be built entirely of hard northern brick. "The outside 
walls will be 32 feet high from the ground, surmounted by 
a handsome cornice....A tower will project ten feet from 
the center of the south side of the building...." The 
structure was completed in 1884 and was originally oriented 
north-south. The main entrance is now on the west side of 
the building. Epworth Hall is a simplified institutional 
structure of red brick. Two stories in height, the building 
is symmetrically laid out with classrooms on either side of 
a wide central hall. This is as per the original plan which 
called for "a long hall-way, eight feet wide, and extending 
the entire length of the building." The main entrance, 
consisting of double pine doors with fanlight above, is set m 
into a pavilion which projects about ten inches from the main 
wall surface. The brick is laid in a common bond of six 
rows of stretchers alternating with one row of headers. Much 
of the wall surface is decorated with corbelled arches and 
bands of glazed brick. The building has two hipped roofs, 
one on the original hall at the rear and one on the newer 
section at the front. There is a pent roofed connecting 
structure between the old and new buildings with a cloistered 
walk projecting from it. This connects Epworth Hall with 
the buildings to either side of it. On the front of the 
building over the main doorway is a stone plaque placed 
there in 1953 which reads:

University of Florida
1853-1953
Site Of 

East Florida Seminary
1866-1905

The building is today an integral part of the United 
Methodist Church and it is in excellent condition.
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Epworth Hall was erected in 1884 when the need for 
adequate classrooms in the East Florida Seminar^ became 
a pressing problem. Funds for construction of the building 
were raised through private donation with a scholarship 
promised to those patrons who gave at least one hundred 
dollars. The construction contract was awarded to J. 0. 
Goodale' on a low bid of $11,000. The building was completed 
in 1884 and served as a classroom building until the 
Seminary was abolished by the legislature in a 1905 act which 
provided for the establishment of the University and the 
State College for Women. In 1906, the University of Florida 
held its first classes in Epworth Hall. The property was 
purchased from the State of Florida in 1911 by the Trustees 
of the First United Methodist Church. It was at this time 
that the building was named Epworth Hall. (It had never 
been officially given a name).

Epworth Hall has played a very significant role in the 
development of Florida's educational system in that it was 
an integral part of the campuses of both the East Florida 
Seminary and the University of Florida.
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tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 
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I hereby certify that this property is included in the 

National Register.
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